
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
1. Approval of September 20th, 2017 Minutes 

2. Committee Applications: None. 
 

3. Updates: 
A. MRC/Fiberight 
B. Staff Report 

4. Old Business:  
A. Quarterly Update, Recreational Marijuana policy  
B. Update on potential commercial development at northeast corner of 

Coldbrook Road and Route 202: review of zoning map amendment 
proposed by developer; update on potential to propose new TIF District 
to facilitate development 
 

5. New Business: 
A. Review of proposed work scope and budget from The Musson Group to 

prepare amendments to the Business Park Covenants and associated 
zoning amendments, including support for public process 
 

6. Zoning Considerations/Discussion:  
A. Discussion of zoning amendment process including the role of the Planning 

Board and its Ordinance Committee; consideration of potential changes 
to process to improve timeliness and efficiency 

 
7. Citizens Initiatives 

8. Public Comments 

9. Committee Member Comments 

10. Adjourn 
 
 

Town of Hampden 

Planning and Development Committee 

Wednesday October 18th, 2017, 6:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Agenda 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attending: 

 

Chairman McPike called the meeting to order at 6 pm. 

1. Approval of September 6th, 2017 Minutes – Motion to approve as submitted 
made by Mayor Ryder with second by Councilor Marble; carried 6-0. 
 

2. Committee Applications: None 
A. Brent Wells, application to appointment to Board of Appeals – Mr. 

Wells presented his interest in serving. Mr. Block provided an overview of 
the BOA’s roles and responsibilities. Motion by Councilor Marble 
seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council appointment of 
Brent Wells to the Board of Appeals. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
3. Updates: 

A. MRC/Fiberight – Manager Jennings provided an update regarding the 
project timeline and there was discussion among the Committee members. 

B. Staff Report – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the meeting 
packet, including the update of ongoing/pending development activity. 

 
4. Old Business:  

A. Update on the Business Park TIF; meeting with representatives from 
Sargent Corporation to discuss how best to market the Business Park 
for development – Manager Jennings said that now that the Business Park 
TIF District is in place, the importance of revisiting the Restrictive Covenants 
has become a high priority item since the Covenants as is add cost, time and 
complexity to the permitting process. Representatives present from Sargent 
Corp. and Epstein Commercial Real Estate agreed with Manager Jennings’ 
suggestion that prospective developers considering the Business Park may 
look elsewhere due to the cost, complexity and restrictive nature of the 

Committee/Council Staff 
Ivan McPike-Chair Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Terry McAvoy Myles Block, Code Enforcement Officer 
David Ryder Kelly Karter, Assessor 
Dennis Marble Public 
Stephen Wilde Brent Wells 
Mark Cormier Chip Laite, Brent Hartley from Sargent Corp. 
Other Elected Official(s) David Hughes, Epstein Commercial Real Estate 
Rep. Dave Haggan Kimberly Haggan 

 

Town of Hampden 

Planning and Development Committee 

Wednesday September 20, 2017, 6:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Minutes – Draft  

townmanager
Typewritten Text
1



covenants. All agreed that it would be essential to involve the current 
Business Park businesses in the process to consider potential amendments. Mr. 
Hughes said that a more vibrant park will benefit everyone. Councilor 
McAvoy asked if we could create a local permit similar to DEP’s “permit by 
rule,” whereby development below a certain size threshold could be fast-
tracked. Manager Jennings said this could be considered, and said that some 
aspects of the Covenants – if they remain – would make more sense to add 
to the Zoning Ordinance so all land use regulations would be in one place. 
Manager Jennings said he would look into getting consultant support to 
advance this initiative in time to inform potential developers’ consideration 
of construction in the Business Park next spring. 

B. Update on Planning Department staffing – Manager Jennings provided 
an update on the interim contract planner and the potential timeframe for 
the Town Planner to return to work. 
 

5. New Business: 
A. Update on recent meeting regarding potential commercial development 

at northeast corner of Coldbrook Road and Route 202; discussion of 
potential to propose new TIF District to facilitate development – 
Manager Jennings reported on his recent meeting with Chuck Lawrence of 
Tradewinds regarding potential new commercial development. He had 
advised Mr. Lawrence of the potential that the Town may be able to assist 
with DEP issues using its Environmental Mitigation Guidelines (involving 
placement of conservation restrictions on portions of the L.L. Bean parcel) 
but that this wouldn’t help in this situation because the wetland impacts would 
affect different types of natural resources than would be protected on the 
L.L. Bean parcel. Over the course of his meeting, Manager Jennings reported 
that it became clear that a TIF and CEA would be important to the viability 
of the land for commercial development, and he asked about the 
Committee’s willingness to consider adoption of a new TIF District. Chairman 
McPike and Councilor Marble expressed support for this and Councilor 
McAvoy said that, while he sometimes doesn’t support TIFs, in this case he 
agrees it is a “distressed” lot so is the type of lot where TIF could be helpful. 
Councilor Wilde said he’d be in favor of looking at potential TIF District 
boundaries including all four corners of the intersection. Manager Jennings 
said he would continue to work with the prospective developer regarding 
how a District could be proposed. 
 

6. Zoning Considerations/Discussion: 
A. Notice of upcoming Public Hearing by Marijuana Legalization 

Implementation Committee at State House regarding recreational 
marijuana policy – September 26th at 9 AM in the Appropriations and 
Financial Affairs Committee room (State House, Room 228, Augusta) 
 
The Committee acknowledged the upcoming hearing date and agreed with 
Manager Jennings that it would be adequate to receive updates after the 
hearing from MMA etc. rather than arranging staff attendance at the 
hearing. It was noted that the next quarterly update on the recreational 
marijuana policy questions would be on the October 18 P&D agenda. 



 

7. Citizens Initiatives: None. 

8. Public Comments: None. 

9. Committee Member Comments: Mayor Ryder asked about why Michael 
Levesque’s proposal to construct a hangar was deemed a commercial building. 
Manager Jennings explained that the residential building code only applies to 
certain types of buildings and that buildings not included in the residential code are 
subject to what is sometimes referred to as the “commercial code.” However this 
does not mean that the building is being considered “commercial.” The non-
residential building code is performance-based, rather than prescriptive (like the 
residential building code). Because a building must demonstrate that it meets 
performance standards, such as snow and wind loads, and because the non-
residential code doesn’t specify how these must be met, it is often necessary for an 
engineer to stamp the plans to certify that they meet the standards. Mr. Block said 
that this was correct. Manager Jennings said that part of his objective in proposing 
a Town Engineer position during the FY18 budget process was to add engineering 
review capability on staff, which could save applicants’ money in some situations.   
 

10. Adjournment: There was a motion and a second to adjourn at 7:15 pm. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors %
Complete

1 Construction Ready Plans for Clearing, Grubbing, Grading and Excavations 3 days Wed 6/21/17 Fri 6/23/17 100%

2 Prepare Contract between Fiberight and Sargent 5 days Mon 6/26/17 Fri 6/30/17 1 100%

3 Clearing Grubbing and Erosion & Sedimentation Control 20 days Wed 7/5/17 Tue 8/1/17 100%

4 Issue Final Reaction Loads for Building 0 days Tue 7/11/17 Tue 7/11/17 100%

5 Issue Building Sealed Approval Drawings 0 days Tue 7/18/17 Tue 7/18/17 100%

6 Foundation and Building Shell Plans - IFC Level 24 days Tue 6/27/17 Fri 7/28/17 4FS-10 days 100%

7 Town Foundation Permit Application (Building Permit Application) 4 days Wed 7/26/17 Mon 7/31/17 6FS-3 days 100%

8 Town in Receipt of Building Permit Fee 0 days Mon 8/14/17 Mon 8/14/17 100%

9 Town Review and Approval - Foundation Design 11 days Mon 8/14/17 Mon 8/28/17 8 100%

10 Town Approval - Issuance of Building Permit - Foundations 0 days Mon 8/28/17 Mon 8/28/17 9 100%

11 DEP Review of Foundation and Building Shell Plans 21 days Tue 8/1/17 Tue 8/29/17 7 100%

12 DEP Approval of Foundation and Building Shell Plans 0 days Tue 8/29/17 Tue 8/29/17 11 100%

13 Final Financial Documents (Commitment Letter or Term Sheets) 0 days Fri 9/15/17 Fri 9/15/17 100%

14 DEP Approval Condition #5 Compliance 0 days Tue 9/19/17 Tue 9/19/17 13 100%

15 Prepare Site Work Contract (Fiberight and Sargent) 16 days Wed 8/2/17 Wed 8/23/17 3 95%

16 Prepare Building Foundation Contract (Fiberight and NS Giles) 3 days Fri 8/4/17 Tue 8/8/17 75%

17 Site Work - Prep Building Site and Foundation Excavation 44 days Wed 8/2/17 Mon 10/2/17 99%

18 Mobilization 3 days Wed 8/2/17 Fri 8/4/17 3 100%

19 Strip Topsoil 3 days Mon 8/7/17 Wed 8/9/17 18 100%

20 Rough Grade - Cut 5 days Thu 8/10/17 Wed 8/16/17 19 100%

21 Rough Grade - Fill (Native Material) 3 days Thu 8/17/17 Mon 8/21/17 20 100%

22 Rough Grade - Fill (Imported Common Borrow) 4 days Tue 8/22/17 Fri 8/25/17 21 100%

23 Rough Grade - Fill (Imported Granular Borrow) 5 days Mon 8/28/17 Fri 9/1/17 22 100%

24 Excavate/Prep for Foundation Installation Column Lines 26-20 6 days Mon 9/4/17 Mon 9/11/17 23 100%

25 Excavate/Prep for Foundation Installation Column Lines 20-14 6 days Mon 9/11/17 Mon 9/18/17 24 100%

26 Excavate/Prep for Foundation Installation Column Lines 14-7 5 days Tue 9/19/17 Mon 9/25/17 25 100%

27 Excavate/Prep for Foundation Installation Column Lines 7-1 5 days Tue 9/26/17 Mon 10/2/17 26 100%

28 Foundation Installation 40 days Mon 9/11/17 Fri 11/3/17 47%

29 Mobilization 5 days Mon 9/11/17 Fri 9/15/17 100%

30 Footing Installation Column Line 26 - East Wall 3 days Tue 9/19/17 Thu 9/21/17 25,29,24FS+1 day 100%

31 Foundation Wall Installation Column Line 26 - East Wall & Retaining Wall 3 days Thu 9/21/17 Mon 9/25/17 30SS+2 days 100%

32 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Line 26 - East Wall & Retaining Wall 5 days Tue 9/26/17 Mon 10/2/17 31 100%

33 Footing Installation Column Line P25 - P20 3 days Fri 9/22/17 Tue 9/26/17 30 100%

34 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines P25-P20 3 days Wed 9/27/17 Fri 9/29/17 33 100%

35 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines P25-P20 5 days Mon 10/2/17 Fri 10/6/17 34 100%

36 Footing Installation Column Line A25 - A20 3 days Fri 9/22/17 Tue 9/26/17 33SS 100%

37 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines A25-A20 3 days Wed 9/27/17 Fri 9/29/17 36 100%

38 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines A25-A20 5 days Mon 10/2/17 Fri 10/6/17 37 100%

39 Footing Installation Column Lines P20-P14 3 days Wed 9/27/17 Fri 9/29/17 25,33 100%

40 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines P20-P14 3 days Mon 10/2/17 Wed 10/4/17 39,31 100%

41 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines P20-P14 5 days Thu 10/5/17 Wed 10/11/17 40 100%

42 Footing Installation Column Lines A20-A14 3 days Wed 9/27/17 Fri 9/29/17 39SS 100%

43 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines A20-A14 3 days Mon 10/2/17 Wed 10/4/17 42 100%

44 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines A20-A14 5 days Thu 10/5/17 Wed 10/11/17 43 100%

45 Footing Installation Column Lines A14-A8 3 days Mon 10/2/17 Wed 10/4/17 42 100%

46 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines A14-A8 3 days Thu 10/5/17 Mon 10/9/17 40,45 100%

47 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines A14-A8 5 days Tue 10/10/17 Mon 10/16/17 46 60%

48 Footing Installation Column Lines P14-P8 3 days Mon 10/2/17 Wed 10/4/17 45SS 100%

49 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines P14-P8 3 days Thu 10/5/17 Mon 10/9/17 48 100%

50 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines P14-P8 5 days Tue 10/10/17 Mon 10/16/17 49 60%

51 Footing Installation Column Lines P7-P2 3 days Mon 10/9/17 Wed 10/11/17 27 100%

52 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines P7-P2 3 days Thu 10/12/17 Mon 10/16/17 51,46 0%

53 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines P7-P2 5 days Tue 10/17/17 Mon 10/23/17 52 0%

54 Footing Installation Column Lines A7-A2 3 days Thu 10/12/17 Mon 10/16/17 51 0%

55 Foundation Wall Installation Column Lines A7-A2 3 days Tue 10/17/17 Thu 10/19/17 54 0%

56 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Lines A7-A2 5 days Fri 10/20/17 Thu 10/26/17 55 0%

CES

CES

Sargent

7/11

7/18

CES

CES

8/14

Hampden

8/28

MDEP

8/29

9/15

9/19

CES

CES

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

NS Giles

June July August Septemb October Novembe Decembe January February March April May June

Task

Split

Progress

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Page 1

Project: Fiberight Hampden Maine Con
Date: Mon 10/16/17

townmanager
Typewritten Text

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-A



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors %
Complete

57 Footing Installation Column Line 1 - West Wall 3 days Mon 10/16/17 Wed 10/18/17 54SS+2 days 0%

58 Foundation Wall Installation Column Line 1 - West Wall 3 days Thu 10/19/17 Mon 10/23/17 57 0%

59 Foundation Wall Min Cure Time Column Line 1 - West Wall 5 days Tue 10/24/17 Mon 10/30/17 58 0%

60 Install Grounding System - East Wall & Retaining Wall 3 days Tue 10/17/17 Thu 10/19/17 52 0%

61 Install Foundation Insulation Column Line 26 - East Wall & Retaining Wall 1 day Fri 10/20/17 Fri 10/20/17 32,60 0%

62 Back-fill Foundation Column Line 26 - East Wall & Retaining Wall 3 days Mon 10/23/17 Wed 10/25/17 61 0%

63 Install Grounding System - Column Lines P25-P20 2 days Fri 10/20/17 Mon 10/23/17 60 0%

64 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines P25-P20 1 day Mon 10/9/17 Mon 10/9/17 35 0%

65 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines P25-P20 2 days Tue 10/10/17 Wed 10/11/17 64 0%

66 Install Grounding System - Column Lines A25-A20 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

67 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines A25-A20 1 day Mon 10/9/17 Mon 10/9/17 38 0%

68 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines A25-A20 2 days Tue 10/10/17 Wed 10/11/17 67 0%

69 Install Grounding System - Column Lines P20-P14 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

70 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines P20-P14 1 day Thu 10/26/17 Thu 10/26/17 69 0%

71 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines P20-P14 2 days Fri 10/27/17 Mon 10/30/17 70 0%

72 Install Grounding System - Column Lines A20-A14 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

73 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines A20-A14 1 day Thu 10/12/17 Thu 10/12/17 44 0%

74 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines A20-A14 5 days Mon 10/2/17 Fri 10/6/17 39,26 0%

75 Install Grounding System - Column Lines P14-P8 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

76 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines P14-P8 1 day Thu 10/19/17 Thu 10/19/17 47 0%

77 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines P14-P8 2 days Fri 10/20/17 Mon 10/23/17 0%

78 Install Grounding System - Column Lines A14-A8 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

79 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines A14-A8 1 day Tue 10/17/17 Tue 10/17/17 50 0%

80 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines A14-A8 3 days Wed 10/18/17 Fri 10/20/17 0%

81 Install Grounding System - Column Lines P7-P2 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

82 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines P7-P2 1 day Tue 10/24/17 Tue 10/24/17 53 0%

83 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines P7-P2 2 days Wed 10/25/17 Thu 10/26/17 0%

84 Install Grounding System - Column Lines A7-A2 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

85 Install Foundation Insulation Column Lines A7-A2 1 day Fri 10/27/17 Fri 10/27/17 56 0%

86 Back-fill Foundation Column Lines A7-A2 3 days Mon 10/30/17 Wed 11/1/17 0%

87 Install Grounding System - Column Line 1 - West Wall 2 days Tue 10/24/17 Wed 10/25/17 63 0%

88 Install Foundation Insulation Column Line 1 - West Wall 1 day Tue 10/31/17 Tue 10/31/17 59 0%

89 Back-fill Foundation Column Line 1 - West Wall 3 days Wed 11/1/17 Fri 11/3/17 0%

90 Remaining Building Plans - IFC Level 48 days Fri 8/4/17 Tue 10/10/17 5 100%

91 Building Production Deposit 0 days Fri 8/18/17 Fri 8/18/17 100%

92 Submittal to Fire Marshal (Approval Not Required for Industrial Occupancies) 0 days Tue 8/15/17 Tue 8/15/17 0%

93 Town Review and Approval - Building Plans 10 days Wed 8/16/17 Tue 8/29/17 0%

94 Fire Marshal Review (Approval Not Required for Industrial Occupancies) 0 days Wed 8/16/17 Wed 8/16/17 0%

95 Submit Updated Site Plan to Town of Hampden and MDEP 0 days Tue 8/29/17 Tue 8/29/17 0%

96 Building Delivery 31 days Wed 10/25/17 Wed 12/6/17 0%

97 Delivery Building Side Wall Columns and Frames 8 days Wed 10/25/17 Fri 11/3/17 0%

98 3 Loads 1 day Wed 10/25/17 Wed 10/25/17 0%

99 3 Loads 1 day Thu 10/26/17 Thu 10/26/17 98 0%

100 3 Loads 1 day Fri 10/27/17 Fri 10/27/17 99 0%

101 3 Loads 1 day Wed 11/1/17 Wed 11/1/17 100FS+2 days 0%

102 3 Loads 1 day Thu 11/2/17 Thu 11/2/17 101 0%

103 3 Loads 1 day Fri 11/3/17 Fri 11/3/17 102 0%

104 Delivery Secondary Framing/Girts and Purlins 6 days Wed 11/8/17 Wed 11/15/17 0%

105 3 Loads 1 day Wed 11/8/17 Wed 11/8/17 103FS+2 days 0%

106 3 Loads 1 day Thu 11/9/17 Thu 11/9/17 105 0%

107 3 Loads 1 day Fri 11/10/17 Fri 11/10/17 106 0%

108 3 Loads 1 day Wed 11/15/17 Wed 11/15/17 107FS+2 days 0%

109 Delivery Wall Panels/Roof Panels 5 days Thu 11/16/17 Wed 11/22/17 108 0%

110 3 Loads 1 day Thu 11/16/17 Thu 11/16/17 0%

111 3 Loads 1 day Fri 11/17/17 Fri 11/17/17 110 0%

112 3 Loads 1 day Mon 11/20/17 Mon 11/20/17 111 0%

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Sargent

Olympia

8/18

8/15

Hampden

8/16

8/29

Olympia

June July August Septemb October Novembe Decembe January February March April May June

Task

Split

Progress

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Page 2

Project: Fiberight Hampden Maine Con
Date: Mon 10/16/17



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors %
Complete

113 3 Loads 1 day Wed 11/22/17 Wed 11/22/17 112FS+1 day 0%

114 Delivery Trims and Insulation 5 days Thu 11/30/17 Wed 12/6/17 0%

115 3 Loads 1 day Thu 11/30/17 Thu 11/30/17 113FS+5 days 0%

116 3 Loads 1 day Fri 12/1/17 Fri 12/1/17 115 0%

117 3 Loads 1 day Wed 12/6/17 Wed 12/6/17 116FS+2 days 0%

118 Building Construction 48 days Wed 10/18/17 Fri 12/22/17 0%

119 Mobilization 5 days Wed 10/18/17 Tue 10/24/17 97SS-5 days 0%

120 Install Exterior Columns - East Wall 3 days Thu 10/26/17 Mon 10/30/17 119,98 0%

121 Install Exterior Columns - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Tue 10/31/17 Thu 11/2/17 120 0%

122 Install Interior Columns - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Fri 11/3/17 Tue 11/7/17 121 0%

123 Install Secondary Steel - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Fri 11/3/17 Tue 11/7/17 122SS 0%

124 Install Rafters - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Fri 11/3/17 Tue 11/7/17 123SS 0%

125 Install Side Panels - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Wed 11/8/17 Fri 11/10/17 123,100 0%

126 Install Roof Panels - Column Lines 26-20 3 days Wed 11/8/17 Fri 11/10/17 124 0%

127 Install Exterior Columns - Column Lines 20-14 3 days Wed 11/8/17 Fri 11/10/17 122 0%

128 Install Interior Columns - Column Lines 20- 14 3 days Mon 11/13/17 Wed 11/15/17 127 0%

129 Install Secondary Steel - Column Lines 20- 14 3 days Mon 11/13/17 Wed 11/15/17 128SS 0%

130 Install Rafters - Column Lines 20- 14 3 days Mon 11/13/17 Wed 11/15/17 129SS 0%

131 Install Side Panels - Column Lines 20- 14 3 days Thu 11/16/17 Mon 11/20/17 129 0%

132 Install Roof Panels - Column Lines 20- 14 3 days Thu 11/16/17 Mon 11/20/17 130 0%

133 Install Exterior Columns - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Thu 11/16/17 Mon 11/20/17 128 0%

134 Install Interior Columns - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Tue 11/21/17 Thu 11/23/17 133 0%

135 Install Secondary Steel - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Tue 11/21/17 Thu 11/23/17 134SS 0%

136 Install Rafters - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Tue 11/21/17 Thu 11/23/17 135SS 0%

137 Install Side Panels - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Fri 11/24/17 Tue 11/28/17 135 0%

138 Install Roof Panels - Column Lines 14- 7 3 days Fri 11/24/17 Tue 11/28/17 136 0%

139 Install Exterior Columns - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Fri 11/24/17 Tue 11/28/17 134 0%

140 Install Exterior Columns - West Wall 3 days Wed 11/29/17 Fri 12/1/17 139 0%

141 Install Interior Columns - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Mon 12/4/17 Wed 12/6/17 140 0%

142 Install Secondary Steel - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Mon 12/4/17 Wed 12/6/17 141SS 0%

143 Install Rafters - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Mon 12/4/17 Wed 12/6/17 142SS 0%

144 Install Side Panels - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Thu 12/7/17 Mon 12/11/17 142 0%

145 Install Roof Panels - Column Lines 7- 1 3 days Thu 12/7/17 Mon 12/11/17 143 0%

146 Completion of Trims, Walk Through and Clean-up 10 days Mon 12/11/17 Fri 12/22/17 145SS+2 days 0%

147 Specification of Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) Equipment and Foundations 0 days Tue 8/15/17 Tue 8/15/17 0%

148 Town of Hampden Review 10 days Wed 8/16/17 Tue 8/29/17 147 0%

149 DEP Review Complete Building Plans and MRF Equipment 30 days Fri 9/15/17 Thu 10/26/17 147 0%

150 Install MRF Equipment 55 days Mon 1/15/18 Fri 3/30/18 0%

151 Specification/Design of "Wet End" Process Equipment and Foundations 0 days Fri 12/15/17 Fri 12/15/17 0%

152 Town of Hampden Review 10 days Mon 12/18/17 Fri 12/29/17 151 0%

153 DEP Review of "Wet End" Process Equipment 20 days Fri 12/15/17 Thu 1/11/18 151 0%

154 Install "Wet End" Process Equipment 45 days Mon 1/15/18 Fri 3/16/18 153FS+1 day 0%

155 MRF Pre-commissioning 10 days Mon 4/2/18 Fri 4/13/18 150 0%

156 MRF Commissioning 15 days Mon 4/16/18 Fri 5/4/18 155 0%

157 MRF Start-up - 50% Capacity 20 days Mon 5/7/18 Fri 6/1/18 156 0%

158 MRF Ramp-up - 100% Capacity 20 days Mon 6/4/18 Fri 6/29/18 157 0%

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

Rutherford Const.

8/15

12/15

June July August Septemb October Novembe Decembe January February March April May June

Task

Split

Progress

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Page 3

Project: Fiberight Hampden Maine Con
Date: Mon 10/16/17





 

JN:  11293.001  Conference Call 2017.10.02 

BI-WEEKLY CONFERENCE CALL 
MRC & Fiberight Facility 

October 2, 2017 
 

Attendees: 

 Craig Stuart-Paul, Alan Iantosca, Patrick Emerson Fiberight 

 Greg Lounder MRC 

 Lou Pizzuti, David Burns Victoria Eleftheriou, Lynn Muzzey Maine DEP 

 Angus Jennings, Myles Block Town of Hampden 

 Sean Thies CES, Inc. 

 

Discussion Notes: 

 

1. Meeting Minutes – No comments. 

 

2. Condition Compliance – Craig thanked Maine DEP for condition compliance work.  Craig let 

everyone know of camera on-site and will send a link so others can view. 

 

3. Secondary Materials –  Victoria: outstanding issues with Hutamaki and recycling.  Craig is 

forwarding draft of agreement information.  Hutamaki was sent earlier today. 

 

4. Construction – Alan: currently placing footings and foundation walls.  Alan will forward weekly 

progress results when they start.  Craig informed of rock removal and that they are still on 

schedule and 1 or 2 days ahead of schedule. 

 

MRF design question from Dave; Alan expects 3D model today and then CES can design the 

sub slab foundations.  Should have contract finished this week with expected date and 

guarantee date. 

 

Building will be up by Christmas and MRF equipment shortly after. 

 

MDEP’s schedule is different than Fiberight’s.  Line 91 on MDEP’s shows MRF starting 

November 7th (September 17th date on MDEP schedule). 

 

Alan will forward revised schedule. 

 

MDEP asked that any updated schedules be forwarded. 

 

Victoria – Wet End Schedule:  Fiberight working on final engineering with AMEC and contract 

negotiations with Cianbro. 

 

David Burns: Next Condition Compliance?  Technical ability, underground wastewater tank, 

wastewater agreement industrial user permit. 

 



 

JN:  11293.001  Conference Call 2017.10.02 

Send MDEP something in writing regarding the need or lack thereof an underground tank for 

wastewater. 

 

5. Town of Hampden – Town is expecting next building permit application soon. 

 



 

JN:  11293.001  Conference Call 2017.09.18 

BI-WEEKLY CONFERENCE CALL 
MRC & Fiberight Facility 

September 18, 2017 
 

Attendees: 

 Alan Iantosca, Patrick Emerson Fiberight 

 Greg Lounder MRC 

 Victoria Eleftheriou, Lou Pizzuti Maine DEP 

 Angus Jennings, Myles Block Town of Hampden 

 Denis St. Peter CES, Inc. 

 

Discussion Notes: 

 

1. Meeting Minutes – No proposed changes to minutes of last conference call. 

 

2. Secondary Material Agreements – Maine DEP asked about status of secondary material 

agreements (e.g., Huhtamaki) to take/use pulp and other materials. Fiberight will check on 

status and forward to DEP when available. 

 

3. Condition Compliance Application – Maine DEP indicated that they anticipated to sign the 

approval order later that day. CES and Fiberight mentioned that Giles (concrete contractor) 

would be ready to start pouring concrete on Wednesday this week. 

 

4. Overall Project Schedule – Fiberight emailed an updated schedule over the weekend which 

shows the building to be constructed by Christmas timeframe and the MRF was on-track. 

Fiberight mentioned that the start date for the building slipped, but the end date stayed the 

same, which fits better with Giles’ concrete schedule. The schedule for the backend has not 

been updated yet, but Fiberight is working hard on it and will provide an updated schedule 

under a separate email. DEP asked about MRF submittal, and Fiberight indicated that they 

anticipated it to be available for DEP review by end of month based on Fiberight comments 

on the previous version.  

 

5. Town of Hampden – The Town mentioned that they were scheduling their concrete 

inspections and needed some specific timing questions. CES suggested that Chris Snowdeal 

from CES who is coordinating these details with Giles will call Myles directly to discuss. Town 

agreed. 

 



  
 
TO:  Planning & Development Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  October 16, 2017 

RE:  Quarterly Update, Recreational Marijuana policy 
 

 

There are two significant updates to report since the prior quarterly update to the P&D 
Committee on July 19: 
 

Proposed Zoning Amendments to Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Retail Sales and 
Social Clubs 
The amendments referred to the Planning Board by the Town Council on August 21 
will be considered by the Planning Board’s Ordinance Committee at their meeting 
tomorrow (Tuesday, October 17 at 6 PM). Upon referral from the OC, it is anticipated 
that the PB would hold its public hearing on November 8. If so, the amendments 
could be considered by the Town Council at a public hearing on November 20. Once 
adopted, ordinance amendments would take effect after 30 days. 
 
Update on State Policy 
As you know a public hearing was held in Augusta in late September, followed by a 
couple of working sessions among legislators. I recently attended a session 
sponsored by the MMA and have enclosed the presentation slides which include 
detailed updates regarding the potential direction that State policy appears to be 
heading. 
 
One of the most notable items, in my opinion, can be found on pp. 16-17 of the 
slides. While not final, if this became final it would have the effect of creating a 
presumptive prohibition of commercial uses related to recreational marijuana.  This 
would require municipalities to specifically zone for the uses, rather than a 
presumptive allowance which would require municipalities that don't want some or all 
of the uses to specifically zone them out.  (Up until receiving this update, Hampden 
and many other communities have been under the impression that there would be a 
presumptive allowance).  
 
This would have bearing on the proposed prohibition of retail sales and social clubs 
that is currently working its way through our amendment process. However, I am 
recommending that we proceed with the amendments. They may end up being moot 
depending on where State policy lands, but would do no harm. 

 
As you know, the P&D Committee (then the Council) will still need to establish local 
policy with regard to the other allowed uses – which, in addition to cultivation, testing 
and manufacture, may now also include “nursery” as an allowable use (which would  

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-A



 
allow production of seedlings, seeds and clones only – no flowering plants). The Council 
will need to determine whether to allow some or all of these uses; if so, in which zoning 
district(s); and if so, subject to what standards applied to the facility/use (zoning) and/or 
facility operator (i.e. licensing, inspections). 
 
It continues to be my opinion that the P&D Committee and Council will be in a better 
position for informed consideration of these questions once the State has finalized its 
policy. However, we will continue to proceed as may be directed by the Committee 





















































Project List - Planning

Project Name Location What it is Size
1

PB Action/Date Type

Fiberight off Coldbrook solid waste processing 153,800 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Hannibal Hamlin Place Main Road N expansion 2,800 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Pine Tree Food Equipment Nadine's Way new building/business 3,600 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Dennis Paper Mecaw Rd expansion 27,237 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Colonial Heights off Constitution phase 3 of subdivision (final plan) 11 new lots Approved Subdivision

Carver Ballfield Rd conversion of single family to two family 1 new unit Approved Conditional Use

Sky Villa 646 Main Road N conversion of interior to 10 short term rehab beds 3,172 sq ft Approved Conditional Use

Brickle 326 Main Road N conversion of single family to two family 1 new unit Approved Conditional Use

Southeast Development Co Route 202/Coldbrook Rd zoning map amendment; Resid A to Comm. Service 16 acres Withdrawn Zoning Map Amendmemt

Hamlin's Marina Marina Road new boat storage building 10,000 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Fiberight 348 Coldbrook Road Site Plan Revision 153,800 sq ft Approved Site Plan

Springer Estates Deer Hill Lane Addition of land to existing lot within subdivision 1 Lot Approved Minor Revision

Hannaford Western Ave.
Addition of ~12' x 32'  external CLYNK bldg as 

accessory structure.
384 sq ft 11/8/2017 Site Plan Revision

H.O. Bouchard Coldbrook Road Expanded office building & Deck 1,620 sq ft 11/8/2017 Site Plan Revision

Southeast Development Co Route 202/Coldbrook Rd zoning map amendment; Resid A to Comm. Service 16 acres 11/8/2017 Zoning Map Amendmemt

1. Size refers to square footage of building (new or addition), number of new building lots, number of new units, or acreage.

Report as of: 10/16/2017

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-B



 
 
TO:  Planning & Development Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  October 16, 2017 

RE: Update on potential commercial development at northeast corner of 

Coldbrook Road and Route 202: review of zoning map amendment 

proposed by developer; update on potential to propose new TIF District to 

facilitate development 
 

 

Since the previous update to P&D at your September 20 meeting, the prospective 
developer has made the decision to proceed with acquiring the property. 
 
As presented on September 20, his decision to move forward is based on an 
expectation that the Town will work with his team to prepare and propose a new TIF 
District and to approve a Credit Enhancement Agreement. The developer has been 
provided the Town TIF policy and is aware of the expectation that he would fund 
(through an escrow account overseen by the Town) the consultant costs necessary to 
do so. Once he closes on the property acquisition, the next step will be to execute a 
professional fee reimbursement agreement and escrow account; engage a TIF 
consultant; and move forward with that work. He is in agreement with this approach, 
and one of his motivations to secure a CEA would be to recoup his up-front investment 
in the soft costs necessary to establish a TIF District and CEA. 
 
The developer has also reactivated their prior petition to rezone the land for commercial 
services. (See attached). This proposed zoning map amendment will be considered by 
the Planning Board at a public hearing on November 8. Upon Planning Board referral, 
the Town Council would conduct its public hearing on Monday, November 20 at 7 PM. 
 
To help all parties plan accordingly and stay in coordination, I'm currently working on a 
project timeline with milestones addressing all of the required steps – zoning, TIF 
district, etc. I expect to be in a position to summarize the anticipated project milestones 
at this week’s P&D meeting. 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-B







200
'

Residential A

Area proposed to be rezoned 
from Residential A to 
Commercial Service;

Apx. 16 acres.

Route 202
Stoneybrook Road

Ruth Ave.
Em

ers
on

 Dr.

Lask
ey L

n

Coldbrook Rd.
Residential A

Commercial Service

Business

Business

± Prepared by Hampden Land & Building Services
July 18, 2017





  
 
TO:  Planning & Development Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  October 16, 2017 

RE: Review of proposed work scope and budget from The Musson Group to 

prepare amendments to the Business Park Covenants and associated 

zoning amendments, including support for public process 
 

 

Following on direction from the Planning & Development Committee at its September 20 
meeting, I invited The Musson Group – which as you know is now under contract and 
providing interim planning support services – to propose a scope and budget to amend 
the Business Park Covenants, including drafting potential zoning amendments that 
could accompany amendment to the Covenants.  
 
We have met to discuss the project, objectives and timeline, and have discussed it by 
phone on several occasions to ensure clear consultant understanding of the work.  
 
I received a proposed scope and budget late today for discussion at the P&D meeting 
on October 18. I have not reviewed the attached in detail and upon doing so tomorrow 
may propose revisions for discussion on Wednesday. 
 
If the Council authorizes the requested reserve funding at its meeting on October 16, 
this would fund the proposed work. In that case I will have the flexibility to proceed with 
an agreement to get the consultants working on this effort.  
 
If the funding authorization is not acted upon until the Council’s next meeting on 
November 6, it will delay the start of work and could threaten the feasibility of meeting 
the P&D Committee’s objective to get the Covenants revised well enough in advance of 
the 2019 construction season in order to inform potential developers’ decisions 
regarding whether or not to pursue a project in the Business Park. 
 
Leaving aside the funding question, my objective at Wednesday’s P&D meeting will be 
to receive Committee direction regarding the proposed project scope and timeline. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
5-A



 

  
PO Box 286, Southwest Harbor, ME 04679  •  207.944.3132  •  noel@themussongroup.com 

 

 

 
October 16, 2015 

 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of Hampden 
104 Western Avenue 
Hampden, ME 04444 
 
Re: Hampden Business Park – Covenants Revisions 
 
Dear Angus, 
  
As requested we have developed a general scope of services and budget cost estimate to assist with 
reviewing and revising the covenants at the Business Park. As discussed, we will be working with Ben 
Smith of Northstar Planning throughout the project, but I will be the one primarily attending workshop 
meetings and public hearings.   
  
TASKS OVERVIEW 
  
Task 1 - Review and Summarize. As a starting point, we will want to become more familiar with the 
existing covenants, pertinent Ordinance provisions, and any requirements that may have been placed on 
the business park during the permitting process.  This will entail a review of including the Business Park 
approval documents from the Planning Board, DEP permits, the zoning ordinance, covenants, etc.  From 
this we will create a summary matrix which can be used to communicate possible changes.   
 
Task 2: Planning Workshop. We propose 2 workshops with the Planning and Development Committee 
to discuss the overall need for changes and to review possible amendments. The initial meeting will 
likely be more educational in nature, where we provide the summary document and learn more about 
the history of the development at the business park from the Town’s perspective. We may also want to 
use this meeting as an opportunity to hear from the existing property owners about their experiences 
and to understand what provisions are important to them and what revisions they might like to see. At a 
second meeting, we would anticipate having more detailed discussion about changes to the covenants 
and possibly additions to the Ordinance.   
  
Task 3: Draft Changes to Covenants and Zoning Ordinance. After the first planning workshop we will 
start to draft changes to the covenants and possibly the ordinance.  We will solicit feedback on these 
proposals at the second workshop and make edits to the covenants and zoning amendments.  We 
anticipate coordinating with the Town Attorney throughout the project to o review changes to 
covenants and review changes to zoning ordinance  
 
Task 4: Approval Process. Once the draft of the ordinance is in place we will be available to attend the 
necessary public hearings to with the Planning and Zoning Committee, Planning Board and Town 



 
 
Council. Our role at these meetings will be to help explain any proposed amendments and to answer 
questions as necessary.    
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Based on our experience with similar projects and the scope of services outlined above, we estimate a 
budget of $14,500.  The budget includes charges for labor, materials, communication and other costs 
necessary to perform the indicated services. Mass printing for public meetings, advertisements and 
other fees are not included in the budget outlined above. As per our contract for planning services we 
will charge mileage for travel and bill at our half rate for travel time 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
If this proposal is sufficient in its present form, a signed copy of the attached Authorization for 
Professional services will serve as our authorization to proceed.  Invoices for services will be issued 
monthly. Work will be billed based on time actually expended. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project.  Please do not hesitate to contact me 
should you require any additional information or a modification to this proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 
The Musson Group 

 
Noel Musson 
Principal/Owner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Acceptance & Authorization to Proceed  
 
Signature:       
 
Printed Name:       
 
Date:    



  
 
TO:  Planning & Development Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  October 16, 2017 

RE: Discussion of zoning amendment process  
 

 

As you know, early in her tenure and at my request the Town Planner performed a fairly 
exhaustive review of State law, local ordinance, Town Charter and Planning Board (PB) 
bylaws in order to prepare the flow chart (attached, and originally included in Fall 2016 
P&D and PB meeting packets) summarizing the ordinance amendment process.   
 
As you may recall, the PB’s Ordinance Committee (OC) is not named in any of those 
official documents; it is simply "how things have always been done" in Hampden.  As a 
result, both its responsibilities and its authority are unclear.   
 
In many towns, including towns where Karen and I have been town planners in the past, 
PBs routinely consider zoning amendments – prior to the public hearing, i.e. in a 
workshop type setting – within the course of a typical meeting.  Since the Hampden PB 
agendas tend to be pretty light, this seems like it would be a reasonable option if the 
members were so inclined. Although I have received some supportive sentiment from 
Chairman Gene Weldon regarding a potential change in how the Board considers 
zoning amendments, it does not appear that there is broader support on the Board to 
make a change. The Board members were asked to consider discussing the proposed 
recreational marijuana amendments at its September meeting but declined to do so, 
preferring instead to refer the amendments to the OC which meets tomorrow. 
 
As the P&D Committee has discussed, OC review adds an estimated month to the 
process of amending the Zoning, Subdivision, and Shoreland Zoning Ordinances (all of 
which require PB consideration and public hearing, under State law, unlike other 
ordinance amendments). A month delay would result if the proposed amendments were 
supported; if the OC extends its deliberations to a second or additional meetings, the 
delay would be longer.  It also creates a need to provide staff support to the meeting, 
both preparing the meeting packet, attending the meeting and follow-up. As Manager, I 
see this staff time as taking away from other work the Town Planner could be doing. 
And, while I recognize the value of the PB’s deliberative consideration of proposed 
amendments, I don’t know why that deliberation cannot occur within its regular meeting. 
At minimum, a schedule change to hold OC meetings on the same night as PB, say at 6 
PM prior to the 7 PM PB meetings would lessen the staffing implications. 
 
I have not yet discussed these issues with the whole Planning Board – primarily with the 
Chair and with the Town Planner. I would like to ensure my clear understanding of the 
P&D Committee’s position on these issues so that we may decide how to proceed.  

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
6-A



The Zoning 
Amendment 

Process

Town of Hampden Maine

Or, who does what when and 
how can we improve it

3-f



PB

P&D

TC

PB

OC

PB

PB 
Hearing

Town 
Attorney

TC

TC 
Hearing

Becomes 
effective

•30 days 
after TC 
adoption

Current Process

Amendment 
starts with 
P&D or PB

Town Council (TC)

Planning & Development Committee (P&D)

Planning Board (PB)

Ordinance Committee (OC)

Town Attorney

Key



PB • Drafts amendment (can 
be OC), Schedules 
hearing

P&D

PB 
Hearing

• Notice posted per 
30-A MRS 4352 
para 9

TC

TC 
Hearing

• Required by 
Hampden 
Charter

Becomes 
Effective • 30 days after Date 

5 (if adopted)

Required: If initiated by PB (Ord. Committee)
Date 1: Initiated

Date 3

Date 5: TC Action

Date 6

Date 4: set hearing

This is the process that is required under state law, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Charter, and the Town Council Rules.

Date 2: Review

Note: The OC is currently an integral part of the 
process but is not included anywhere in the written 
ordinance or rules. 



TC •TC request 
referred to 
PB

PB •Schedules 
hearing

P&D •Review & 
recommendation

PB 
Hearing

•Notice posted per 30-A MRS 
4352 para 9; Recommendation 
to TC within 45 days of Date 2

TC •Set hearing 
date

TC 
Hearing •TC Action

Becomes 
Effective

• 30 days after Date 
5 (if adopted)

Required: If Initiated by TC (P&D Committee)
Date 1

Date 2

Date 4

Date 5

Date 7

Note: The OC is currently an integral part of the 
process but is not included anywhere in the written 
ordinance or rules. 

This is the process that is required under state law, the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Charter, and the Town Council Rules.

Date 6

Date 3



OC
• Town Planner works with 

OC to draft amendment, 
updating P&D during 
process, Town Attorney 
review during this step.

PB
• Reviews and 

schedules 
hearing

PB 
Hearing

• Notice posted per 30-A 
MRS 4352 para 9

P&D • Reviews and makes 
recommendation to TC

TC • Reviews and takes 
action

Becomes 
Effective

• 30 days after Date 5 
(if adopted)

Recommended Process

Date 1*

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4

Date 5

Date 6

The intent is to make the entire process 
a more collaborative effort between 
the Town Planner, P&DC, OC, and PB.

Notice posted in town hall at least 13 days prior to 
hearing; published in newspaper at least 12 days 
and 7 days prior to hearing.

* Date 1 is actually a time 
period which could last 
anywhere from a few weeks 
to a few months, depending 
on the complexity of the 
amendment. For this exercise, 
Date 1 is the last meeting of 
the OC on the amendment. 

The TC, through the P&D, should be setting 
policy regarding what is in the best interest for 

the Town regarding zoning regulations. 
The PB, through the OC (with help from staff), 

should be drafting the language for the 
amendments to accomplish the goals set by TC.

To implement this, Sec. 213(b) of the Town Charter will need to be 
amended to exclude amendments to the Zoning Ordinance from the 
requirement for a public hearing. TC action would still be required, 
but the public hearing held by the Planning Board, which is required 
by statute, should suffice for public input. It is also recommended to 
amend Sec. 1.5 of the Zoning Ordinance to more accurately and 
clearly reflect the amendment process, whether initiated by the 
Town (TC, PB, or staff) or by a private entity or by petition of 10% 
of the registered voters. 

Also note the Zoning Ordinance sets forth specific procedure for 
amendments to zoning districts (map) that are initiated by a 
property owner; that process supersedes this.

Note: the draft 
amendment may be 
modified based on 
input at the hearing.



OC • Aug 24

PB • Sept 14

PB 
Hearing

• Oct 12

P&D • Oct 19

TC • Nov 7

Becomes 
Effective

• Dec 7; 
• Total 15 weeks

Recommended Process, sample schedule
Date 1

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4

Date 5

Date 6



TC
•Submitted at any TC mtg; proposed 
ordinance included in packet

•Set public hearing

P&D •Not written into Charter procedure, but is 
in TC Rules that P&D review proposed 
ordinance

TC 
Hearing

•Notice of hearing published and 
posted at least 7 days prior to 
hearing

• If substantive changes made, 
requires new public hearing

•TC action to follow hearing

Becomes 
Effective • 30 days after Date 3 (if 

adopted)

For Ordinance Amendments NOT Involving PB

This is the process that is required under the Charter and the 
Town Council Rules.Date 1

Date 2

Date 3

Date 4




